Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Table Of Contents

	Page
Independent Auditor's Report	1
Financial Statements	
Statements Of Benefit Obligations And Net Assets Available For Benefits	4
Statements Of Changes In Benefit Obligations And Net Assets Available For Benefits	5
Notes To Financial Statements	6
Supplementary Information	
Schedules Of Administrative Expenses	13
Schedule Of Compensation, Benefits And Other Payments To Agency Head Or Chief Executive Officer	14
Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Governmental Auditing Standards	15
Schedule Of Current Year Findings	17
Schedule Of Prior Year Findings	18



Independent Auditor's Report

To the Trustees
St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees
Health & Welfare Fund
Covington, Louisiana

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statements of benefit obligations and net assets available for benefits as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of changes in benefit obligations and net assets available for benefits for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net assets available for benefits of St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in net assets available for benefits for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities Of Management For The Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Management is also responsible for maintaining a current plan instrument, including all plan amendments, administering the plan, and determining that the plan's transactions that are presented and disclosed in the financial statements are in conformity with the plan's provisions, including maintaining sufficient records with respect to each of the participants, to determine the benefits due or which may become due to such participants.

Auditor's Responsibilities For The Audit Of The Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
 expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of St. Tammany Federation of
 Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's internal control. Accordingly, no
 such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report On Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of administrative expenses and the schedule of compensation, benefits and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2025 on our consideration of St Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pedelahore & Co., LLP

Pedelahou & Co, LLP

Metairie, Louisiana

June 24, 2025

Statements Of Benefit Obligations And Net Assets Available For Benefits December 31, 2024 and 2023

	2024	2023
Benefit Obligations Estimated claims incurred, but not reported	\$ 63,651	\$ 64,058
Assets Receivables:		
Participant's contributions	-	51,275
Cash	845,968	1,550,082
Total assets	845,968	1,601,357
Liabilities And Deferred Contributions Accounts payable and accrued expenses Due to St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/	10,007	11,494
School Employees	9,618	16,505 330,000
Deferred contributions Total liabilities and deferred contributions Net Assets Available For Benefits	19,625 826,343	357,999 1,243,358
Excess Of Net Assets Available For Benefits Over Benefit Obligations	\$ 762,692	\$ 1,179,300

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Statements Of Changes In Benefit Obligations And Net Assets Available For Benefits Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

	2024	2023
Net Increase (Decrease) In Benefit Obligations Increase (decrease) during the year attributable to: Estimated claims incurred, but not reported	\$ (407)	\$ (993)
Net Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Available		
For Benefits		
Contributions:		
St. Tammany Parish School Board	330,000	660,000
Voluntary employee (including COBRA payments)	656,298	622,897
Total contributions	986,298	1,282,897
Miscellaneous income	810	1,454
Total additions	987,108	1,284,351
Payments:		
Claims	1,138,323	1,061,563
Administrative expenses	265,800	236,427
Total deductions	1,404,123	1,297,990
Net Increase (Decrease)	(417,015)	(13,639)
Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets Available For Benefits Over Benefit Obligations	(416,608)	(12,646)
Excess Of Net Assets Available For Benefits Over Benefit Obligations		
Beginning of year	1,179,300	1,191,946
End of year	<u>\$ 762,692</u>	\$ 1,179,300

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 1. Fund Description

St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund (the Fund) was established May 13, 1993 pursuant to a collective bargaining agreement entered into by and between the St. Tammany Parish School Board (Employer) and the St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees (Union), for and on behalf of teachers and other employees engaged in covered employment under the collective bargaining agreement.

The Fund is a voluntary employee beneficiary association (VEBA) qualified under Section 501 (c) (9) of the Internal Revenue Code and organized and administered under Louisiana State law. Consequently, a trust agreement was adopted May 13, 1993 governing the Fund's administration and a plan of benefits was adopted subsequently thereto specifying the eligibility rules for employees and dependent participation and the benefits extended by the plan.

Because the Fund has been established for the exclusive benefit of public employees and is funded pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement by contributions of a governmental agency, the Fund is a "governmental plan" exempt from the coverage of ERISA (the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974). The Fund is not regulated by Section 302 (c) (5) of the Labor Management Relation Act, despite its collectively bargained status, since the Act exempts from its purview employers and the union in the public sector.

The Fund is administered by seven Trustees appointed by and represented by the Union. Although authorized by law to offer any benefit sanctioned by Section 501 (c) (9) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Fund presently pays only dental benefits and does not offer major medical benefits of any kind.

Effective January 1, 1999, the Fund began to self-insure all benefits payable by the Fund.

The Fund is self-administered by an Administrative Manager employed directly by the Board of Trustees. The Fund does contract with a firm to provide claims administration on a monthly per employee cost basis.

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

General

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Receivables

Receivables are recorded at cost less an allowance for credit losses, which is the net amount expected to be collected. Accounts are considered past due once the unpaid balance exceeds two months of receivable. When an account balance is past due and attempts have been made to collect the receivable, the amount is considered uncollectible and is written off.

The closing balances of receivables are as follows:

December 31, 2024	\$ -
December 31, 2023	51,275
December 31, 2022	49,205

Allowance for Credit Losses - Receivable

The Fund has made no allowance for credit losses as all amounts are considered collectible at December 31, 2024 and 2023.

With respect to receivables, the Fund's policy is to measure its allowance for credit losses based on an evaluation of historical internal and external information and past experience of the receivable aging, adjusted for current economic conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecast about future events that affects the collectability of receivables. Specific factors considered in measuring the expected amount of receivables collected including the current specific risk characteristics, current and forecasted future financial condition, credit rating of each member relative to the Fund's underwriting standards, the participant's past payment history and forecasted payment ability, and other factors such as changes in the economy due to interest, inflation and unemployment levels.

In measuring expected credit losses for receivables, the Fund considers the entire population of receivables to be a single pool because the assets have similar risk characteristics in terms of member creditworthiness and the impact of the current

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

and forecasted direction of the economic and business environment on collectability of such receivables. In situations in which participants have risk characteristics that are outside those of the participants pool as a whole, those participants are evaluated for credit losses using criteria independent of the remainder of the participants receivable pool.

From time to time, there may be changes in current economic conditions, such as rates of interest and inflation, among others that may impact the overall economic outlook and change the forecast of the expected amount of receivables to be collected. In those situations, the Fund factors in those changes into its computation of expected losses.

In 2024, there were no changes in the Fund's accounting policies, methodology, in measuring credit losses related to its receivables. There were no significant changes in the amount of accounts written off in 2024.

A summary of the 2024 roll forward activity in the Fund's allowance for credit losses related to receivables follows:

Balance January 1, 2024	\$ -
Current provision for credit losses	-
Write-offs charged against the allowance	-
Recoveries of previous amounts written off	 -
Balance December 31, 2024	\$

Contributions

All contributions submitted to the Fund are administered by the Board of Trustees pursuant to the Plan of Benefits, as amended from time to time. Contributions are due in annual installments and are considered earned on a pro-rata basis.

Claims Incurred But Not Reported

The benefit obligation for estimated claims incurred, but not reported were estimated by the Fund's actuary based on a percentage of claims paid for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 2. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Fund considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. A bank custodian holds the Fund's assets.

Note 3. Funding Policy

In July 2023, the St. Tammany Parish School Board contributed \$660,000 annually to the Fund for the year ended December 31, 2023; \$330,000 of which was recognized for the year ended 2023 and \$330,000 was recognized for the year ended 2024. No contribution was made by the St. Tammany Parish School Board in 2024. An employee may voluntarily contribute additional amounts, determined by the Trustees to purchase coverage for the employee's eligible dependents. Employees contributed \$657,238 and \$624,830 to obtain dependent coverage for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

If eligibility is terminated due to cessation of employment or a reduction in hours, an employee may pay for extended coverage pursuant to COBRA, state law, and the Fund rules for limited terms and under the limitations specified in the law and the Fund.

Note 4. Concentrations Of Credit Risk

At various times during the period, cash on deposit with one banking institution exceeded the \$250,000 insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Management monitors the financial condition of the financial institution on a regular basis, along with their balances in cash and cash equivalents to minimize the potential risk. Cash on deposits is secured by collateral of sufficient market

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 4. Concentrations Of Credit Risk (continued)

value equal to at least 100% of amounts not insured by any United States government agency.

Note 5. Related Party Arrangements

The Fund reimburses the St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Union for various operating expenses such as office facilities, utilities and telephones. Total expenditures for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were \$3,726 and \$10,118, respectively.

Note 6. Commitments

Equipment Leases

In June 2020, the Fund entered into a sixty month operating lease for equipment at a monthly rental of \$60. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, lease expense amounted to \$720 and \$720, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases at December 31, 2024 were as follows:

Year Ending	<u>An</u>	<u>Amount</u>	
2025	\$	360	

In March of 2022, the Fund entered into a sixty month operating lease for equipment at a monthly total of \$97. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 lease expense amounted to \$1,164 and \$1,164 respectively. Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases at December 31, 2024 were as follows:

_A	Amount	
\$	1,164	
	1,164	
	<u>291</u>	
<u>\$</u>	2,619	
	 -	

Notes To Financial Statements Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Note 7. Tax Positions

The Fund is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c) (9) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Management has reviewed all tax positions taken in filing with the taxing authorities and believes that there would be no resulting adjustments to taxes paid should these positions be examined. Tax years subject to taxing authority review were December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021.

Note 8. Risks And Uncertainties – Significant Estimates

Estimated claims incurred but not reported are based on formulas representative of reasonable levels of such claims as established by industry standards. The standards are based on insurance company studies, lag studies and certain actuarial assumptions. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimations and assumptions processes, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates in the near term would be material to the financial statements.

Note 9. Subsequent Events

In preparing the financial statements, management has evaluated transactions and events for potential recognition or disclosure through June 24, 2025 the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Supplementary Information

Schedules Of Administrative Expenses Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

		2024	2023
Benefit administration	\$	114,885	\$ 103,691
Salaries		87,512	79,318
Professional fees		34,892	23,505
Payroll taxes and fees		11,360	10,480
Office expense		6,117	6,943
Office rent		4,500	4,500
Meetings and conventions		3,457	3,699
Postage and supplies		2,544	1,588
Telephone		223	748
Dues and subscriptions		178	-
Bnnk Fees		120	-
Utilities		12	707
Legislative expense			 1,248
	<u>\$</u>	265,800	\$ 236,427

Schedule Of Compensation, Benefits And Other Payments To Agency Head Or Chief Executive Officer Year Ended December 31, 2024

Agency Head: Brant Osborn

Not Applicable. Public funds were not used for agency head compensation, benefits, and other payments during the year ended December 31, 2024



Independent Auditor's Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Trustees
St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees
Health & Welfare Fund
Covington, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of benefit obligations and net assets available for benefits as of December 31, 2024, and the related statement of changes in benefit obligations and net assets available for benefits for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2025.

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employee Health & Welfare Fund's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

0.4

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report On Compliance And Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether St. Tammany Federation of Teachers/School Employees Health & Welfare Fund financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose Of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pedelahore & Co., LLP

Pedelahore & Co. LLP

Metairie, Louisiana

June 24, 2025

Schedule Of Current Year Findings Year Ended December 31, 2024

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements	
Type of auditor's report	Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting	
• Material weakness(es) identified?	YesX_ No
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? reported 	YesX_ None
 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 	YesX_ No
Section II Financial Statement Findings	
No findings	

Schedule Of Prior Year Findings Year Ended December 31, 2023

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements		
Type of auditor's report	Unmodi	fied
Internal control over financial reporting		
• Material weakness(es) identified?	Yes	X No
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? reported 	Yes	X_ None
• Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?	Yes	XNo
Section II Financial Statement Findings		
No findings		